
Flag Salute

Public Comment

Executive Session RCW 42.30.110- 1(i)

Minutes Tab A Approval Introduction X Action X

Approval of Vouchers Introduction X Action X

Mayor Comments

Staff Reports Tab B Dan Glenn

Tab C Todd Baun

Tab D Additional Staff Reports

Old Business Tab E RV Parking in Residential Areas

Tab F Grinder Pumps

Tab G Draft Emergency Declarations

Tab H Continuous Flow Operations 

New Business Tab I Council Priorities and Goals for 2017

Tab J FCS Rate Study Update

Tab K Knox Box Home Program

Tab L Cemetery Update

Ordinances Tab M Civil service change/Council meeting time

Resolutions

Mayor Council Comments

Public Comments

Executive Session

Please turn off Cell Phones- Thank you
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Accommodation is Provided Upon Request

The City of McCleary is an equal opportunity provider and employer.

La ciudad de McCleary es un proveedor de igualdad de oportunidades y el empleador

McCleary City Council 
Agenda

Adjournment or Recess Meeting

August 10th, 2016- 6:30 PM

Roll Call: ___Pos. 1- Orffer, ___ Pos. 2-Richey , ___ Pos. 3- Peterson, ___ Pos. 4- Blankenship, ___ Pos. 5- Ator



                                CITY OF MCCLEARY

                       Regular City Council Meeting

                          Wednesday, July 13, 2016

ROLL CALL AND FLAG SALUTE Councilmember's Orffer, Richey, Peterson, Blankenship, and Ator were in attendance.

ABSENT None.

STAFF PRESENT Present at the meeting were Todd Baun, Wendy Collins, John Graham, Jon Hinton and Dan 
Glenn.

PUBLIC HEARING None.

PUBLIC COMMENT The Port of Grays Harbor attended the meeting to give a  presentation on what the port has 
been doing over the past year.

At 7:25 pm the Council recessed the meeting for five minutes and restarted at 7:30 pm.

Gloria Hale announced there will be a Community Watch potluck on July 31st at the 
Community Center starting around 3-4 pm. Bring a dish and get to know your neighbors.

Austin Wright asked the Council if they would approve three signs at the entrances of 
McCleary stating it is a Neighborhood Watch area. Mayor Schiller told Austin to work with 
Todd Baun, Public Works Director, on ordering and installing the signs. 

Helen Hamilton explained the importance of public comments during the time it is being 
discussed on the agenda because sometimes, if the public doesn't comment before or after 
the meeting, the Council moves forward and votes on something and the public feels they 
didn't get a chance for their voice to be heard. 

Shannon Daniel has been asked by several people if the tennis court can get a net installed. 
Mayor Schiller told her the Council recently discussed turning the tennis courts into a pickle 
ball court. 

Joanie Sampson spoke in support of allowing RV parking on personal property. They use 
theirs for not only recreational usage but also it is a potential emergency preparedness 
housing option.

BEAR FESTIVAL UPDATE Cathy Von Yeck thanked the City for all their help with the Bear Festival this year. She said it 
costs $18,000 to $20,000 to put the festival on. She stated the committee is burned out and 
are in need of help. They will have a meeting in August and she encourages everyone to 
please attend and see if they have any spare time to contribute to volunteering for the Bear 
Festival. One person has stepped up to be the Secretary but they still need a Chair and Co-
Chair. The current leadership will help out and assist the new volunteers but they truly need a 
break after four years. The Bear Festival is too important to allow to fade off and any help is 
greatly appreciated and necessary for it to continue.

EXECUTIVE SESSION None.

MINUTES APPROVED It was moved by Councilmember Peterson, seconded by Councilmember Orffer to 

approve the June 8, 2016 minutes. Motion Carried 5-0.

VOUCHERS Accounts Payable vouchers/checks approved were 41222 - 41292 including EFT's in the 
amount of $125,760.74 and 41293 - 41335 including EFT's in the amount of $45,324.90. 

Payroll vouchers/checks approved were 41195- 41362 including EFT's in the amount of 
$234,641.22. 

Bank reconciliation for June 2016 was approved.

It was moved by Councilmember Peterson, seconded by Councilmember Ator to 

approve the vouchers. Motion Carried 5-0.

MAYOR'S COMMENTS Grinder pump workshop is set for August 5th at 2:30 pm.



Mayor Schiller thanked Corey Morris, reporter for the Vidette, for the recent article.

The City Council meeting summer schedule is ending in July. Starting in August, the Council 
will go back to the regular two-meeting per month schedule and will begin starting all meetings 
at 6:30 pm instead of 7:00 pm.

Garth "Sandy" Jones was a LEOFF1 retiree and was a McCleary Police Officer for many 
years. He passed away on July 5th and Mayor Schiller took a moment to recognize his 
commitment to the community and acknowledge the loss of a great man.

WSDOT is scheduling for a bridge project due to the fish passage, which will start in the 
spring of 2017. The project will effect the west exit/entrance into McCleary from Highway 8 for 
approximately 2 years. 

Mayor Schiller appreciated the Bear Festival and all the hard work that was involved to make it 
another great success.

CITY ATTORNEY REPORT Dan Glenn provided a report and is available to respond to any questions.

DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS 
REPORT

Todd is working with FCS on scheduling for them to attend a Council meeting in August.

Tenelco is the company that removes the bio solids from the treatment plant. The contract is 

the same, with the exception of a minimal fee increase. It was moved by Councilmember 

Ator, seconded by Councilmember Orffer to authorize the Mayor to sign the contract 

with Tenelco for two-years at a rate of $52.00 per wet ton. Motion Carried 5-0.

A volunteer offered to mow the grass on a City-owned piece of property off of Summit Road, 
which was purchased for a future fire station. Todd would like to accept his offer to mow as a 

volunteer, as long as there is no liability involved, to save City funds. It was moved by 

Councilmember Orffer, seconded by Councilmember Orffer to authorize the local 

volunteer to work with the Public Works Director to mow the future fire station property 

with a waiver of liability. Motion Carried 5-0.

MUSEUM UTILITY BILL 
DISCUSSION

Tabled.

RV PARKING ROW ORDINANCE 
UPDATE

Todd Baun stated that currently residents cannot park RV's on the City right-of-way. He has 
been working with Dan Glenn to update the ordinance to today's standards. This includes 
boats, recreational vehicles, and others. We need to define what can be parked and where it 
can be parked in the public City right-of-way. The issue is enforcement and what should be 
considered a nuisance. Councilmember Orffer didn't see anything of concern in the ordinance 
and Dan Glenn said it's basically clarifications spelled out in the ordinance.

RV PARKING IN RESIDENTIAL 
AREAS

Currently, the municipal code from 1962 is written to say a resident cannot have a trailer 
parked on private property unless it is an approved trailer park. The City does not have 
approved trailer parks and only the fire station is zoned as a trailer park. The City needs to 
correct this in order for residents to have trailers, boats, ATV's, motorcycles and other RV's on 
their private property. Mayor Schiller thinks they still have to do more work on this. Todd needs 
more direction on what changes and direction the Council wants him to take so he can bring 
something back to them that reflects their preference. Councilmember Orffer is in favor of this 
ordinance but believes there needs to be some definition. Mayor Schiller added there needs to 
be conditional use. He knows of a trailer that has all the windows knocked out and is tarped. It 
is not in usable condition. There should be a definition in place of whether that is okay, if so for 
how long. These things need to be defined. Councilmember Orffer believes the ordinance is 
very close to being done and she thinks the public will be happy with it. It is not forcing anyone 
to take their RV's out of town to store, they are not forcing only certain locations on people's 
property. She said they are trying to be very accommodating. She asked for the public to email 
an further comments or questions to Todd Baun and he can address them. 

MUSEUM UTILITY BILL The Historical Society asked the Council to help them with the utility bills in an effort to keep 

the museum open. The City owns the building and paid for the utility bills in the past. It was 

moved by Councilmember Ator, seconded by Councilmembers Peterson and Richey to 

authorize the City to pay the museum utility bills and for Dan Glenn to prepare an 

agreement for the Finance Committee to review and make a recommendation on, and if 

they agree, the Mayor can sign. Motion Carried 5-0.



ORDINANCE 818 SHORELINE 
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

ADOPTION

We are now at the point of adopting the Shoreline Management Plan after working with The 
Watershed Company since March 2014. The plan is 119 pages long, which is why it is 

available online to read and was not printed for review. It was moved by Councilmember 

Orffer, seconded by Councilmember Ator to adopt Ordinance 818, adopting a Shoreline 

Master Program, repealing any provision in conflict therewith, providing for 

codification, and providing for an effective date and transition. Roll call taken in the 

affirmative. Ordinance Adopted.

RAINIER CONNECT 
FRANCHISE REQUEST

Rainier Connect, a telecommunications company and internet service provider, and long 
standing provider in the State of Washington, requested a franchise agreement with the City 
since they are extending their service to McCleary. This is in the beginning stages and no 
action is requested at this time.

WILDCAT LIFT STATION 
BID/CONTRACT

Jon Hinton from Gray & Osborne, Inc., reported on June 22, the City received four bids for the 
Wildcat Drive Sewage Lift Station  Improvements Project. The low responsive bidder was 
Pease and Sons, Inc. out of Tacoma, Washington. They are a current Washington State 
registered and licensed contractor and they have relevant qualifications and experience to 
perform the work on the project. The Council is obligated by law to take the lowest responsible 
bidder, which is why they cannot approve the local bidder, even though they were only $200 

higher. It was moved by Councilmember Orffer, seconded by Councilmember Ator to 

authorize the Mayor to sign the Wildcat Lift Station bid contract with Pease and Sons, 

Inc., in the amount of $157,077.02. Motion Carried 5-0.

PICKLEBALL COURT Todd Baun prepared an estimate to establish three pickle ball courts located at the old 
tennis/skateboard park. The total cost of the project is $1,936.51. The Council will approve a 

portion of the project to get it started. It was moved by Councilmember Ator, seconded by 

Councilmember Orffer to resurface and place lines for the pickle ball court not to 

exceed $1,000. Motion Carried 5-0.

DOG PARK A survey was added to the City's website asking for interest in a dog park. The survey will be 
kept up on the website for a little longer to get more comments and the topic will be addressed 
at a future meeting. After discussion, the Council will agree to review any new survey's and 
discuss location and specifics. Tabled.

REED FUND EXPENDITURE A request was made to expend $20,000  from the REED (Rural Electric Economic 
Development) fund, which currently has $100,255 available. There are stipulations on how the 
money can be spent. Doug Krikava, Chairman of the REED Committee, met with the 
Committee members, Wendy Collins and Todd Baun before the meeting and reviewed the 
request and agreed this is an appropriate expenditure of the fund. $12,000 will be used to 
expand the current Fire Department building and $8,000 will be used to purchase needed 

equipment for the Police Department. It was moved by Councilmember Orffer, seconded 

by Councilmember Peterson to follow the REED Committee's recommendation and 

authorize $20,000 to be expended from the REED Fund for Fire Hall expansion and 

Police Department equipment. Motion Carried 5-0.

DRAFT EMERGENCY 
DECLARATIONS

Tabled.

CONTINUOUS FLOW 
OPERATIONS

Tabled.

ORDINANCE 819 - RV PARKING 
ROW ORDINANCE

It was moved by Councilmember Ator, seconded by Councilmember Peterson to adopt 

Ordinance 819, relating to parking; adding a new section to Chapter 10.20 of the 

Municipal Code; establishing penalties; repealing any ordinance, including section 

10.20.010.MMC, inconsistent with its terms; and providing an effective date. Roll call 

taken in the affirmative. Ordinance Adopted 5-0.

RESOLUTION 690 - VACATION 
LEAVE

After months of consideration, the Council and Mayor are ready to adopt a vacation leave 
resolution making all Administrative positions fair in the City as to how vacation leave can be 

used and/or bought out. It was moved by Councilmember Ator, seconded by 

Councilmember Peterson to adopt Resolution  690, relating to employment policies, 

amending that certain policy in relation to the ability to receive compensation for 

unused vacation leave, amending section  4.7 of the City's personnel policies, as 

adopted by Resolution 574, and providing for transition. Resolution Adopted 5-0.



CEMETERY BUY BACK 
AGREEMENT

A citizen asked if the City was willing to purchase back a cemetery plot. Her parents were 
buried there together on one plot. She is moving out of state and has other plans for her 
remains. They paid $400 for the plot and she is asking for the City to pay her the same 
amount to return the plot to the City, who in turn, can resale the plot at the higher current rate. 
Dan Glenn agreed to prepare an agreement for future requests to sell back cemetery plots to 

the City. It was moved by Councilmember Ator, seconded by Councilmember Peterson 

to buy back the cemetery plot 2 in block 204 of the McCleary Cemetery from Ms. Judi 

Harper, for $400. Motion Carried 5-0.

COMMUNITY NEIGHBORHOOD 
WATCH SIGNS

It was moved by Councilmember Blankenship, seconded by Councilmember Ator to 

authorize Todd Baun to work with Austin Wright on obtaining and placing 

neighborhood watch signs at the City entrances. Motion Carried 5-0.

EXECUTIVE SESSION None.

PUBLIC COMMENT Tammy Antilla, President of the Historical Society, thanked the Mayor and Council for 
supporting the McCleary Museum and Historical Society. She said they need more members 
and volunteers and she encouraged anyone that is interested to please contact her. The 
museum is open for tours.

Congressman Kilmer attended the Bear Festival for the third year in a row and helped serve 
stew. He was a pleasure to have attend the festival and the Mayor appreciates his interest in 
the City of McCleary events.

Gloria Hale would like to see fireworks shortened to less than the current eight days. It's hard 
on animals and people to have them go off for eight days.

A gentleman from the audience encouraged people to have at least 30 days of preparedness 
for each individual in their families and also encouraged the RV parking issue to allow the 
RV's as they are considered a part of emergency preparedness for some people.

Marci Alderman wants the City to be careful as they consider what types of vehicles and 
trailers are on properties because some of them may not be attractive to certain people but 
are a huge part of other families. She knows of a horse trailer that is a big part of a certain 
family and they shouldn't be nit picked because someone else doesn't like it. 

MEETING ADJOURNED It was moved by Councilmember Ator, seconded by Councilmember Orffer to recess 

the meeting at 9:00 pm. The next meeting will be Wednesday, August 10, 2016 at 6:30 

pm. Motion Carried 5-0.

Approved by Mayor Brent Schiller and Clerk-Treasurer Wendy Collins.

















STAFF REPORT 

 

To: Mayor Schiller 

From: Todd Baun, Director of Public Works 

Date: August 8, 2016 

Re: Current Non-Agenda Activity 

 

     

Cemetery request: 

 

Sandra Morgan has requested to install a border around the headstone of her parents.  The 

border will be ground level and have hole in it for flowers.   According to our Ordinance 

488 and Resolution 462, authorization has to be granted by the Public Works Director for 

this item in the cemetery.   

I see no reason to not allow this request from Ms. Morgan.  Does the Council have any 

objection to having Ms. Morgan install this border?   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tab C 





STAFF REPORT 
 

To: Mayor Schiller 

From: Kevin Trewhella, Water & Wastewater Manager 

Date: August 5, 2016 

 

 

Overall operations of both the Water and Wastewater Treatment Plant is 

very good.  

As we did last summer, to keep operations at the Water plant operating 

smoothly, we have throttled the pump flow down from 400gpm to 325gpm. 

This is done prevent damage to the pumps. 
  

Please remind your neighbors to conserve water whenever they can. 

 

At the Wastewater Treatment Plant, we are working in conjunction with City 

Hall to ramp up communications urging the citizens of McCleary to avoid 

flushing wipes. Wipes that say “Flushable” do not break down like toilet 

paper does. 

“Wipes Clog Pipes”. 

 

Just last week we had a sewer line plugged due to wipes. 

This problem is not particular to McCleary. This is a nationwide problem.  

We have equipment that is getting plugged every day due to wipes getting 

caught up in the equipment.  We have pulled out as much as 10 gallons a day 

in wipes. 

 

 
 

Some of the above items may look familiar. They contribute to the increased 

cost to the city for maintaining the Sewer lines and the Wastewater 

Treatment Plant. 



Building and Planning Staff Report 

1 | P a g e  
 

To: Mayor and City Council 

From: Paul Morrison 

Date: August 1, 2016 

Re: July Building and Planning Department activities. 

 

New Permit Activities for July 2016 

125 North 7th Street 

 

Front Porch Total Fee $ 93.60 

503 South 3rd Street 

 

Home Repairs Total Fee $ 154.50 

618 West Ash Street New SFR Total Fee $ 2,071.90 

 

419 East Buck Street 

 

New SFR Total Fee $ 10,141.90 

420 East Huckleberry 

 

New SFR Total Fee $ 9,480.80 

323 South Main Street 

 

New SFR Total Fee $ 10,268.95 

Permit Revenues Total fees charged for July 

$ 32,211.65 

Total amount collected for July 

$ 19,212.90 

 

 

 

Permit Activity History Totals 

New Homes Permitted for 2016 

11 

All Permits Issued for 2016 

71 

Total Fees Charged for 2016 

$ 116,068.50 

New Homes Permitted for 2015 

2 

All Permits Issued for 2015 

52 

Total Fees Charged for 2015 

$52,499.28 

New Homes Built for 2014 

3 

All Permits Issued for 2014 

89 

Total Fees Charged for 2014 

59,695.93 

New Homes Permitted for 2013 

3 

All Permits Issued for 2013 

79 

Total Fees Charged for 2013 

69,743.57 

New Homes Permitted for 2012 

6 

All Permits Issued for 2012 

97 

Total Fees Charged for 2012 

123,164.28 

New Homes Permitted for 2011 

1 

All Permits Issued for 2011 

37 

Total Fees Charged for 2011 

24,803.65 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Building and Planning Staff Report 

2 | P a g e  
 

7 Unresolved Nuisances for the Month of June 

Unresolved Nuisance Letters for the Month of July (MMC 8.16 & 8.20)    
309 South 5th Street 

 Storing of unused/unlicensed vehicle  

7 Larson Road 

 Storing of unused/unlicensed vehicles 

121 South 3rd Street 

 Not retaining collection service (Lemay’s) 

229 East Beck Street 

 Not retaining collection service (Lemay’s) 

414 South Main Street 

 Not retaining collection service (Lemay’s) 

807 North Summit Road 

 Not retaining collection service (Lemay’s) 

511 West Ash Street 

 Not retaining collection service (Lemay’s) 

503 West Simpson Avenue 

 Not retaining collection service (Lemay’s) 

627 West Simpson 

 Not retaining collection service (Lemay’s) 

560 North Summit Road 

 Not retaining collection service (Lemay’s) 

411 West Pine 

 Not retaining collection service (Lemay’s) 

119 West Maple Street 

 Storing of unused/unlicensed vehicle 

322 South 3rd Street 

 Storing of unused/unlicensed vehicle 

131 South 5th Street 

 Storing of unused/unlicensed vehicle 

226 East Pine  

 Unsafe Structure 

328 West Pine 

 Storing of unused vehicle 

108 North 10th Street 

 Tarp on roof, tires on top of the tarp, water jugs with rope to hold tarp down 

 Miscellaneous junk in the front driveway and in the backyard 

 Not retaining collection service (Lemay’s) 

 Notice to Abate Unlawful Conditions (living in the home with no utilities) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Building and Planning Staff Report 

3 | P a g e  
 

3 Unresolved Abatements for the Month of June 

Abatements Issued for the Month of July (Correction Notice) 

810 North Summit Road 

 Storing of unused/unlicensed vehicles 

Parcel 061700001200 

 Overgrown Empty Lot 

1060 North Summit Road 

 Storing of unused vehicles 

 Junk scattered around the property 

 Overgrown Property 

330 South 2nd Street 

 Junk scattered around the property 

 Overgrown property 

 

Notice of Infractions Issued for the Month of July 

503 South 3rd Street (2nd NOI) 

 Junk scattered around the property 

 Unused unlicensed vehicle 

211 East Beck Street (2nd NOI) 

 Junk scattered around the property 

 Unused unlicensed vehicles 

423 West Pine Street (1st NOI) 

 Junk scattered around the property 

 Unused unlicensed vehicles 

Owner of 203, 211, 302 East Beck 

 

Resolved Municipal Code Violations for the Month of July 

 120 South 5th Street  

 526 South 4th Street 

 810 North Summit Road 

 362 South First Street 

 124 South 6th Street 

 943 North Summit Road 

 405 West Fir Street 

 413 South 3rd Street 

 

There are several properties that have contacted me and I am currently working with them to comply. 

There are several that have yet to contact me or comply.   



STAFF REPORT 

 

To: Mayor Schiller 

From: Todd Baun- Director of Public Works 

Date: August 3, 2016 

Re:  RV Parking on Private Property Update 

 

 

After adding some changes recommended in the last Council meeting, this is the 

language that we would like to see in our Municipal Code that would update our current 

Code.   

 

Parking and Storage of Recreational, Utility and Commercial Vehicles in 

Residential Areas 

 

1. Exemptions: Pickup or light trucks, fourteen thousand five hundred pounds gross 

vehicle weight rating (GVWR) or less, with or without a mounted camper unit, which are 

primarily used by the property owner/renter for transportation purposes are exempt from 

this section.  

2. Recreational and Utility Vehicles: Recreational and utility vehicles are defined as 

travel trailers, folding tent trailers, motor homes, truck campers removed from a truck or 

pickup, horse trailers, boat trailers with or without boats, other recreation trailers and 

utility trailers, boats, motorcycles, snowmobiles and other motorized recreation vehicles. 

Recreational and utility vehicles may be parked in residential areas provided the 

following conditions are met:  

 

a. Vehicles shall not intrude into public right-of-way or obstruct sight visibility from 

adjacent driveways;  

b. Vehicles shall not be parked in the front building setback unless there is no 

reasonable access to the building side yards or rear yards because of topography 

or other physical conditions on the site.  

c. The registration and license must be kept current for each Recreational and Utility 

Vehicle stored or parked on premises. Recreational and Utility Vehicles must be 

owned or leased by the property owner or the property tenant.   

d. The recreational vehicles shall be maintained in a clean, tidy, and well-kept state 

which does not detract from the appearance of the surrounding area. Clean, tidy, 

and well-kept state would be characterized by order and neatness; free from 

disorder.    

e. Recreational and Utility Vehicles must be in operable condition and be able to 

move under its own power or be towed or carried by another vehicle. 

f. Recreational vehicles equipped with liquefied petroleum gas containers shall meet 

the standards of the Interstate Commerce Commission. Valves or gas containers 

shall be closed when the vehicle is stored, and, in the event of leakage, immediate 

corrective action must be taken;  

g. At no time shall parked or stored recreational vehicles be occupied or used as a 

permanent or temporary dwelling unit except that guests who travel with a 

recreational vehicle may reside in the vehicle on the host's premises on a 

temporary basis not to exceed thirty days per year. 

Tab E 



STAFF REPORT 

Page 2 of 2 

 

h. No Recreational or Utility vehicle shall be parked or stored on any privately 

owned vacant property in a residential zone.  

i. Screening Requirements: 

I. Vehicles parked in the front, on the side or rear of a residential property 

must be covered or sight screened from the closest abutting street right of 

way when the vehicle is not parked perpendicular to the right-of-way.  

II. Fitted covers are permitted and may be used as long as they are 

specifically designed for the Recreational or Utility Vehicle.  No 

temporary coverings such as tarps or cloth screens are permitted.  Sight 

screening may include fencing, landscaping or other alternative method 

approved by the Director of Publics works or his/her designee.   

 

3. Service Connections: A recreational vehicle located in a residential area shall not be 

permanently connected to separately metered gas, water, or sewer service, but may be 

temporarily connected to existing metered water service and electric service for the 

purpose of maintaining moisture or temperature control within the vehicle. 

 

 

 

 

Action Requested:   
 

Please discuss to see if this is the approach you would like to take with travel trailers, 

recreational vehicles and motorhomes parked/stored on private property.   

 

     



STAFF REPORT 

 

To: Mayor and Council 

From: Todd Baun- Director of Public Works 

Date: August 8, 2016 

Re: Grinder Pumps 

 

For your reference, I have attached all the history of this subject since April of 2016. 

 

In April of 2016, we had an inquiry from a land owner that is developing some lots North 

of City limits.   His question, would the city have an interest in allowing him to connect 

to the city sewer from his lots on Hicklin road? He proposes using the E-One system that 

would require a single line from the project and each lot would have its own grinder 

pump.  He has a total of 15 lots that he would connect.   Since they are outside of City 

limits the County only requires onsite septic but the developer will get more usable space 

if he connects to our sewer (this also provides less impact on the aquifer for our drinking 

water).   

 

That current area has 2 zones.  One zone is RR- rural residential, which a minimum of 1 

house per acre.  There are currently 10 building lots and that are between 1 and 2.07 

acres.  The other zone is G5- General Development 5, which is a minimum of 1 house per 

5 acres.  There currently are 5 lots in this zone that range from 5 acres to 7.5 acres.    

 

I have also asked Jon Hinton and Kevin (our WWTP manager) to attend the meeting to 

answer any questions you may have.   

 

 

Action Requested: 

 

Please discuss and give direction on if you are in favor or against connections of grinder 

pumps to our sewer system.  If in favor, can you start thinking what kind of conditions 

we would allow the grinder pumps?  i.e. maintenance agreements, increased rates, future 

connections.      

Tab F 



STAFF REPORT 

 

To: Mayor and Council 

From: Todd Baun- Director of Public Works 

Date: April 5, 2016 

Re: E-One Grinder Pumps 

 

We recently had an inquiry from a land owner that is developing some lots North of City 

limits.   His question, would the city have an interest in allowing him to connect to the 

city sewer from his lots on Hicklin road? He proposes using the E-One system that would 

require a single line from the project and each lot would have its own grinder pump.  He 

has a total of 15 lots that he would connect.   Since they are outside of City limits the 

County only requires onsite septic but the developer will get more usable space if he 

connects to our sewer (this also provides less impact on the aquifer for our drinking 

water) 

 

We had a similar request for the same type of system in September 2006 for the Cedar 

Heights development.  That request was turned down for Cedar Heights by the City 

Council at that time, but the Council left the issue open to be revisited for future 

developments.   

 

A possible drawback is once you allow grinder pumps, you will probably be getting 

requests to use them on almost every developer extension that needs a pumping system. 

This is a big decision because Ecology’s policy is the City is responsible for any 

problems, even when the pump is on private property. The City should have an easement 

and a maintenance agreement with each property that is using a grinder pump. If there is 

a problem with the system, causing a potential health hazard (sewage spill) and the 

property owner won’t fix it, the City needs documentation allowing them to come on the 

property, fix the problem and back charge the property owner. Cities that allow grinder 

pumps typically have a few new pumps on the shelf for this purpose. 

 

On the PRO side, since grinder pump systems are cheaper to install than a conventional 

pump station, allowing them may stimulate the potential for development within the City. 

We just need to be aware of the potential for increased cost for engineering review, 

easements, maintenance agreements and maintenance. 

 

I have attached a brochure about E-One systems.  I have also asked Jon Hinton to attend 

the meeting to go over more pros and cons of this type of system and answer any 

questions you may have.   

 

 

Action Requested: 

 

Please discuss and give direction on if you are in favor or against connections of grinder 

pump to our sewer system.   

 



STAFF REPORT 

 

To: Mayor and Council 

From: Todd Baun- Director of Public Works 

Date: April 22nd, 2016 

Re: E-One Grinder Pumps 

 

After discussion at last council meeting, I provided each Council member with a copy of 

the City Comprehensive Land Use Plan, the amendments to the plan and the Wildcat 

creek aquifer agreement.  I didn’t provide them in this packet due the size of the 

attachments.   

 

From all information that I have researched about our sewer and water systems, it is up to 

City Council to choose if the City will allow the extension of municipal sewer and water 

service beyond city limits under such terms and conditions as are found to best serve the 

interests of the City specifically, and of the area, generally. 

 

 

Action Requested: 

 

Please discuss and give direction. 

 



STAFF REPORT 

 

To: Mayor and Council 

From: Todd Baun- Director of Public Works 

Date: May 6th, 2016 

Re: Grinder Pump information 

 

At the last council meeting, it was requested that I get some rate comparisons from 

communities that have grinder pumps.  I have compiled the information that I found in 

the table below.     

 

City   Base Rate- 

Residential  

 Grinder Pump 

Surcharge  

Percentage Above 

Base 

Bremerton  $ 34.24   $ 11.03  32% 

Bonney Lake  $ 53.45   $ 18.00  34% 

Tenino  $ 94.00   $ 3.00  3% 

Bainbridge Island  $ 50.00   $ 23.59  47% 

Sammamish Plateau  $ 75.19   $ 35.04  47% 

 

I have made contact with Olympia, and they specifically call for the E-One system due to 

the reliability of the pumps.  They are very happy with the E-One pumps that are 

currently in their system.  The also do not charge a surcharge for customers that utilize 

grinder pumps.  Homeowners are also responsible for the maintenance and repair of their 

pumps.  The City does keep a minimal amount of parts on the shelf in case a home owner 

has an “overflow” event and cannot get it repaired in a timely manner.  The City will then 

repair the pump to stop the “overflow”.  

 

For training personnel to work on the pumps, it will require minimal time to get up to 

speed on trouble shooting issues.  The pump system is similar to our lift stations that we 

currently maintain.  It has an alarm, float and pump just like our lift stations.   

 

There is a 5 year warranty on these pumps.  Parts for one of these pumps range in the area 

of $2,000-$5,000 depending on pump size.   

 

Action Requested: 

 

Please discuss and give direction. 

 



STAFF REPORT 

 

To: Mayor Schiller 

From: Todd Baun- Director of Public Works 

Date: July 5, 2016 

Re: Draft Emergency Declarations  

 

 

This items was tabled at the July 13th meeting. 

 

 

Since the Cascadia Rising drill, we have found that we are lacking some items that will 

make declaring an emergency easier.  By having these draft declarations, the Mayor or 

approved official, can sign the declaration without having to contact the attorney to draft 

a declaration. This can save time, resources and worry, in case we cannot communicate 

with the attorney during a disaster.    

 

The Mayor has requested the following draft declarations ready in case we ever face 

these types of disasters. 

 

 Earthquake  

 Wind Strom  

 Flooding  

 Wild land Fire 

 Hazardous Materials 

 Snow and Ice 

 

 

 

Action Requested:   
 

Please review the request and let us know if this is something to continue pursuing and if 

there are any other disasters that need to be included.   

 

 

 

Tab G 



STAFF REPORT 

 

To: Mayor Schiller 

From: Todd Baun- Director of Public Works 

Date: July 5, 2016 

Re: Continuous Flow of Operations  

 

 

Tabled from July 13th Meeting.   

 

Also something we learned in the Cascadia Rising drill, we do not have continuous flow 

of operations in case of an emergency.   

 

Continuous Flow of Operations is an effort within individual executive departments and 

agencies to ensure that Primary Mission Essential Functions (PMEFs) continue to be 

performed during a wide range of emergencies, including localized acts of nature, 

accidents and technological or attack-related emergencies. The ultimate goal of 

continuity in the executive branch is the continuation of National Essential Functions 

(NEFs). In order to achieve that goal, the objective for organizations is to identify their 

Essential Functions (EFs) and ensure that those functions can be continued throughout, or 

resumed rapidly after, a disruption of normal activities 

 

Currently we have the following positions list, in the order as it appears below have full 

authority to act on behalf of the City to protect people, city assets, environment, and 

economy, to include instituting Revised Code of Washington 38.52., by formally 

declaring an Emergency and/or Disaster. 

 

Mayor  

Mayor Pro-Tem 

Council   

 

What happens if we can’t get ahold of the people in the positions above?  That is why I’m 

requesting is a documented procedure showing our operations in case of an emergency.  I 

have also attached our current organizational chart for your review.   

 

 

Action Requested:   
 

Please review the information above and give guidance on how you would like to 

proceed.   

 

 

 

Tab H 



 

Hearings Examiner

City of McCleary

Organization Chart 2016

City Engineer

Labor Relations

Information 

Technology

Public Defender

Mayor                           

Brent Schiller (2016-

2017)

Assist. Chief

Jerry Banks

Parks Maintenance 

Robert Duncan 

(Part Time)

Clerk - Treasurer        

Wendy Collins

Police Chief                

George Crumb

Fire Chief 

Paul Nott

Fire Lieutenants

Contracts

City Attorney
Sergeant              

John Graham

Officer               

Randy Bunch

Light & Power    

Senior Lineman     

Paul Nott

Utility Accounts 

Manager                   

Lori Ann Hanson

Public Works          

Director                    

Todd Baun

Water/Wastewater        

Manager                    

Kevin Trewhella

Public Works 

Foreman             

Steven Reedy

Deputy                                

City Clerk          

Lindsay Blumberg

Seasonal Labor      

(680 Hrs)

Seasonal Labor        

(680 Hrs)

Utility 

Maintenance I          

Jenna Powers

Lineman                 

Brad Lott

Treatment Plant 

Operator                    

Jon Ehresmann

Utility 

Maintenance II        

John Allardin

Officer                 

Vacant

Police Clerk 

Vacant

Lineman              

Pierce Ridgway

Line Equipment 

Operator                    

Jeff Catterlin

Utility 

Maintenance II          

Joe Pittman

Fire Captains

City Council

Brenda Orffer- Position 1 (2016-2019)

Dustin Richey- Postion 2 (2016-2019)

Larry Peterson- Position 3 (2014-2017)

Ben Blankenship- Position 4 (2016-2017)

Pam Ator- Position 5 (2015-2017)

Fire Fighters

Building Official           

BHC Consulting

Public Works                  

Assistant                  

Paul Morrison



STAFF REPORT 

 

To: Mayor Schiller 

From: Todd Baun- Director of Public Works 

Date: August 5th, 2016 

Re: Council Priorities and Goals for 2017 

 

 

The budget process has started.  To help us with the budget process, I would like Mayor 

and Council to start thinking about priorities and goals for 2017.   

 

Please consider the following while coming up with the priorities and goals you would 

like to accomplish in 2017. 

 

 The time involved 

 The personnel resources required. 

 The money required. 

 The projects that didn’t get done because of higher priority projects. 

 The time, resources, and money necessary to maintain the advances of 2016. 

 Any unforeseen events that transpired which caused us to be less effective than 

you would have liked.   

 

In July’s meeting, I will be handing out “homework” for the Mayor and Council to 

complete by Augusts meeting.  I will then compile the goals and see if we can work 

together to come up with a list of goals for 2015.   

 

The last time that this was done was back in 2009.  For an example of what will help us 

out is attached below.  They are goals from the Mayor and Council in 2009.   

 

 
 

 

 

Tab I 



STAFF REPORT 

 

To: Mayor Schiller 

From: Todd Baun- Director of Public Works 

Date: August 5th, 2016 

Re: FCS rate study update 

 

 

 FCS is getting closer to completing our electrical rate study, along with the water and 

sewer rate reviews.  The next step is setting a date to meet with staff and the finance 

committee.  That meeting will go over results they have so far and to get the final 

information and details needed to complete the study.  The dates that we are looking at 

are Aug. 19th, 26th or Sept. 2nd.  Once we have that meeting, FCS will perform the final 

presentation, which is tentatively scheduled for September 14th for the council.   

 

Action requested: 

 

Please review and let me know what date will work for the staff and finance committee. 

The dates are Aug. 19th, 26th or Sept. 2nd. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tab J 



STAFF REPORT 

 

To: Mayor Schiller 

From: Todd Baun- Director of Public Works 

Date: August 3, 2016 

Re:  Knox Box Home Program 

 

 

The McCleary Fire Department would like the Council to know that we are now 

registered for the Knox Box Home Program.  This program is for residential property 

owners, at-risk residential occupants, and persons responsible for at risk occupants who 

need the ability to grant fire departments access to a residential property in an emergency 

without property damage, Knox® HomeBox™ is the most secure, residential-grade, key 

safe that is trusted and supported by your local fire department. Unlike "universal" or 

"realtor" residential-grade boxes that can be opened by anyone who has a common key or 

PIN, Knox HomeBox is a high security, weather-resistant key safe that can only be 

accessed by your fire department 24 hours a day, 7 days a week to provide peace of mind 

and safety to your property, loved ones, and pets. 

 

Purchasing is easy; 

 The customer goes to www.knoxbox.com   

 Scroll down on the home page, to Knox HomeBox 

 Click on – to learn more here- tab 

 Then just follow the instructions. 

 The pricing appears to be in the range of $160.00 - $175.00. 

 

 

    K 

Tab K 

http://www.knoxbox.com/


STAFF REPORT 

 

To: Mayor Schiller 

From: Todd Baun- Director of Public Works 

Date: August 5th, 2016 

Re: Cemetery Update 

 

 

 Brent and I met with several citizens that are concerned about our current cemetery rules 

and regulations.  Specifically, they are frustrated that their items are removed/missing 

from their family/friend/relatives grave sites.  The City has been performing “sweeps” of 

the cemetery several times a year to remove items that are damaged, faded, dead or 

frayed.  We came up with a couple of options to help let our citizens know when we be 

performing the “sweeps” of the cemetery and also alert the citizens of our rules and 

regulations.  The options we are going to start off with are the following: 

 

 Move the cemetery rules and regulation on the website to an easier access point. 

 Post rules and regulations at each entrance to the cemetery.  The city removal 

schedule will also be on the sign. 

 Hand out the rules and regulations with the deeds when new plots are purchased.  

 

For your information, I have attached the Rules and Regulations, we have posted on the 

website, at the end of this report. The rules and regulations are from Ordinance 488, 

adopted in 1985 and from Resolution 462, adopted in 2001.  

 

Action requested: 

 

Please review and let us know you have any additional ideas or information you would 

like to add. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tab L 



STAFF REPORT 

Page 2 of 3 

 

RULES- Ordinance 488 
It is unlawful to perform or conduct any of these items within the McCleary Cemetery. 

1. Place or erect any sign, board, billboard, or similar device of any kind. 

2. Create, place or erect any structure. 

3. Exhibit or distribute any handbills, circulars, or signs in any manner that interferes 

with or obstructs the normal use or passage of people or vehicles. 

4. Remove, destroy, mutilate, or deface any structure, monument, wall, fence, 

railing, bench, shrub, tree, lawn, grass, plant, flower, lighting system, or sprinkler 

system, or any other property of thing lawfully installed. 

5. Physical alterations, whether in the form of additions, modifications, or removal 

without written approval of the City. 

6. Adding of any foreign matter (including without limitation such materials as 

sawdust or sand) without written approval of the City. 

7. To allow dogs, pets, horses and other quadrupeds, or domesticated animals on any 

area covered by turf or in any structure. (except for service animals) unless 

specifically authorized or by special permission in writing by the City. 

8. Selling of beverages or merchandise without written consent of the City. 

9. Solicit contributions. 

10. Operate, ride, drive any wheeled device, sled, vehicle, or animal over, across, or 

through the cemetery, except along designated paths, drives, or streets. 

11. Operate, ride, or drive any device listed above in excess of 5mph. 

12. To stand or park any vehicle except where so designated and posted. 

13. To utilize any toy wheels, (skateboards, roller blades, scooters, bicycles, radio 

controlled toys, etc.) but not to include, carriages for infants, strollers, children's 

wagons, and similar items.  

14. Camping. 

15. Golf and other sporting activities. 

16. Build or have a fire. 

17. Set off fireworks or any type. 

18. Utilization of public address systems, loudspeakers, or other sound amplifying 

device. Except for such instruments utilized during the ordinary course of a 

funeral ceremony, without written authorization from the City. 

19. Possession of any alcoholic beverage, whether opened or unopened. 

20. Littering. 

21. To utilize the cemetery outside of the hours of 6:30 a.m. to 10:00 p.m. 

  

REGULATIONS- Resolution 462 
 All grave markers, headstone, outline markers, fences or items of a similar nature 

or purpose shall be no higher than three (3) feet above the ground level. 

 No shrub, tree, or bush of a woody fibrous nature shall be planted or permitted 

except as part of a landscape program established and maintained by the City or 

specifically authorized in writing. 

 No gravesite cover other than natural grass or decorative rock shall be utilized 

without prior authorization from the City. 

 Planting of bulbs and other flowers around family plots and on individual 

gravesites shall be allowed: PROVIDED that any such planting shall be subject to 

approval of the city and subject to removal when deemed necessary and 

appropriate by the City. 



STAFF REPORT 

Page 3 of 3 

 

 Fresh flowers may be placed upon gravesites. All fresh flowers must be placed in 

containers which are at ground level and otherwise approved by the City, the 

receptacle for which is an integral aspect of the grave marker or headstone. 

Flowers shall be subject to removal by the City when deemed necessary and 

appropriate. 

 Exception to fresh flower requirement- artificial flowers, wreaths, potted plants, 

baskets, and similar items during such time periods as may be authorized by 

regulations. Items so placed shall be subject to removal by the City when deemed 

necessary and appropriate. 

 No digging of holes or placing of rods or braces to insert or support pots or 

containers upon a gravesite which would constitute a risk of injury to person or 

property. 

 No glass containers for flowers or any other material shall be allowed at any time. 

 All earth interments shall be enclosed in a vault or liner manufactured for the 

purpose of burial of human remains into the ground. Installations shall be 

performed by City staff or an approved supplier. 

Lots shall only contain the uncremated remains of one person. With prior consent, it may 

also contain the cremated remains of up to five (5) persons. Multiple internments shall 

provide satisfactory proof of relationship to the City for approval. 
















